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CONSENT AGREEMENT AND ORDER 

The Commo~lwealth of Pennsylvania, acting tlrough the Department of Banking (the 

"Departnlent"), Bureau of Exanlinations, has conducted an exa~nination ("Examination") of Ideal 

Mortgage Bankers, Ltd. d/b/a Lend America ("Lend America") and its officers, employees and 

directors. Based on tlie results of the Examillation, the Bureau of Compliance, Investigation and 

Licensing (the "Bmeau") believes that Lend America operated in violation of 7 Pa. C. S . 8 6 10 1 

et (the "Mortgage Act"). The parties to the above captioned matter, in lieu of litigation, - 

hereby stipulate that the following statements are true and correct in tile settlement of the above- 

captioned matter and, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree to the terms of this Consent 

Agree~llent and Order (the "Order"). 

BACKGROUND 

1. The Depastment is the Commonwealtl~ of Pennsylvania's adnlinistrative agency 

authorized and enlpowered to ad~ninister and enforce the Mortgage Act. 

2. The Bureau is primarily responsible for administering and eiforcing the Mortgage 

Act for the Department. I 



I 
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3. The Mostgage Act is the successor statute to Cllapter 3 of the Mortgage Bankers 

and Brokers and Consunler Equity Protection Act (the "MBBCEPA"), 63 P.S. 5 456.301 et seq., 

and the Secondary Mortgage Loan Act (the "SMLA"), 7 P.S. 5 6601 et seq. On Novenlber 5, 

2008, Cl~apter 3 of the MBBCEPA and the SMLA were repealed by operation of law and 

replaced by the Mortgage Act. 

4. Lend Anlerica was licensed as First Mortgage Ba~llcer, license no. 163 9 1, pursuant 

to the MBBCEPA and as a Secondary Mortgage Lender, license no. 16392, pursuant to the 

SMLA. - 

5. Lend Anlerica was granted a conditional license pursuant to the Mostgage Act on 

November 5,2008. 

6. Lend Anlerica is currently licensed as a Mortgage Lender pursuant to the 

Mortgage Act. 

7. Lend America cui-sently maintains its principal place of business in Pennsylvania 

at 324 Main Ave, Hawley, PA 18428-1330 (the "Principal Place"). 

8. Lend Anerica currently niaintains a branch license at the corporate headquarters 

located at 520 Broad Hollow Road, Melville, NY 11747 (the "Corporate Office"). 

-- 9;- -- -On-January -25;-200 8;-an exanziner-from the -Departmeilt-initiated the -Examination. - 

of Lend America at the Principal Place. 

10. At the time of the Examination, the Principal Place and the Corporate Office were 

the only licensed locatioils of Lend America. 

11. This Order shall constitute the full and final resolution of all matters related to or 

arising out of the Examination. The executio~l of this Order by Lend Anzerica shall not 

coilstitute an adnlissioll of ally of the allegations set fol-tl~ below. 



Unlicensed Locations 

12. The Exanlination revealed that Lend America allegedly originated seven (7) 

Perl~lsylvania first nlortgage loans from two u~ilicensed locations in New Yorlt (the "Unlicensed 

Locations"). , 

13. The loan applications for five (5) of the loans reflected an address of 101 -05 

Lefferts Blvd, Richmond Hill, NY 11418 and the loan applicatioas for two (2) of the loans 

reflected an address of 891 1 Glenwood Road, Brooltlyn, NY 11236. 

14. Lend America contends that the remainder of the loan documeilts, includilig all ~ I 
I 

required disclosures reflected t l~e  Corporate Office address. 

15. Specifically, Lend America provided the examiner with a spreadsheet (the 

"Spreadsl~eet") that listed loan officer names and the specific offices to which they were 

assigned. 

16. In discussions with t11e Bureau, Lend America clarified that the Spreadsheet 

reflected locations to which loan officers are assigned for general ledger pul-poses, rather than a 

listing of locations where loan officers are located or from which they conduct business. 

17. The Mortgage Act defines a "branch" as "[a]n office or other place of busiliess, / 
- - -- - -- otlie1' -thal~- t21e-principal-place-of -businesss -1oeated-in-this- Collullzonwealt11- or- any- other.state, - - _  -. - - - - 

I 
where a person engages in the nlortgage loan business subject to this cl~aptes." 7 Pa.C.S. 5 61 02 

(cossesponding to 63 P.S. 5 456.302). 

18. Sectioil 613 1 (a)(l)(ii) of the Mortgage Act (corresponding to Section 304(a) of 

tlze MBBCEPA and Section 4(a)(5) of the SMLA) provides, in relevant part, that a11 applicatioiz 

for licensure shall include ". . . the address or addresses where the applicant's nlortgage loan 



business is to be coi~ducted." 7 Pa.C.S. $ 6131(a)(l)(ii) (emphasis added) (corresponding to 63 

P,S. 8 456.304(a) and 7 P.S. 5 6604(a)(5)). 

19. Section 6132(b)(2) of the Mortgage Act (corresponding to Sectioil 305(a) of the 

MBBCEPA and Section 5 of the SMLA) provides that a licensee must pay a renewal fee for each 

branch office. 7 Pa.C,S, 5 6132(b)(2) (corresponding to 63 P.S. $ 456,305(a) and 7 P.S. $ 6605). 

20, Thus, based on the foregoing, any office of a licensee where mortgage loan 

business is conducted under the Mostgage Act must be licensed as a branch pursuant to the 

Mortgage Act. 

21. Lend America contends that the loan origiilations were due to a processing error 

whereby the individual located at the Corporate Office who was taking the loan application 

incoi~ectly selected the Unlicensed Locations as the source of origination. Lend America has 

advised the Depat-tinent that neitller of the Unlicensed Locations are staffed with einployees or 

are equipped to originate loans as there-is no access to Lend America's loan origination system. 

Fu~ther, applications for each of the seven (7) loans at issue were talten over the telephone and 

did not involve any face-to-face i~lteractiot~ between the loan officers and borrowers. 1 
Unlicensed Activity I 

Peilllsylvania inortgage loan applicatio~is for Federal Housing Administration ("FHA") 

nlortgages fiom non-FI-IA approved mortgage brolters. 

23. Lend Anlerica contends that the non-FI-IA approved inortgage brolters only 

provided counseling services to consumers. 

24. The Exanlinatiolz revealed that in illstailces where the loans closed and funded the 

collsunler paid a fee to the non-FHA approved brolters that ranged from 1% - 4% of the loan 



amount. The fee, since it was paid to a mortgage brolter, was listed on the HUD-1 Settlemellt 

Statenlents as a "Broker Fee." 

25. The HUD-1 Settlement Statenle~lts reflected fees payable to Lend America that 

,varied in amount. 

26. According to the Mortgagee Letter 2008-17 issued by the United States 

Department of Housing and Urban Developlneilt (HUD) on June 20, 2008; "FHA loan 

origination services 177ust be yerforn?ed by a FHA-approved lender or FHA-approved nzortgage 

broker (loan corsesponde~~t). A FI-IA-approved loan cossespondent may be compensated for the 

actual loan origination services it perfoms either directly by the consulner or indirectly by the 

FHA-approved lender without being in violation of either the Real Estate Settlement Procedures 

Act (RESPA) statute and regulations or FHA regulations." See Exhibit A. Emphasis added. 

27. Mortgagee Letter 2008-17 goes on to state that "While FHA regulations permit a 

borrower to engage a brolter who is not FHA-approved to assist himiher in obtaining mortgage 

financing (24 CFR 203,27(e)), the loan origination services nzaj) izot be perfor17zed by tlzat brolcer 

aizd tlze FHA approved nzortgugee sl7,nll not conzyelzsate the broker for sz~clz services." See 

Exhibit A. Emphasis added. 

brolcer may "act as a disguised refirrul fee for steering the borrower to the FI-1A;approved lender 1 
or loan correspondent, ~lhich  is GI 1)101~fioi7 o f  seeti011 ~ ( c I )  o f  RESPA." See Exhibit A. Enlphasis 

added. 

29. Section 8(a) of RESPA provides, in releva~lt part, that "[n]o person shall give and 

no person shall accept any fee, Iticlcback, or thing of value pursuant to any agreement or 

understai~ding, oral or otherwise, that busiiless incident to or a part of a real estate settlenlent 



service involving a federally related nlortgage loan shall be referred to ally person. 12 USCS 5 

2607(a). 

30. The Bureau contends that since the consuiners paid a Brolter Fee to the non-FHA 

brolters at settlement, Lend Anzerica was having the non-FHA brolters conipensated for referring 

the consumers to Lend America. 

3 1 ,  Lend America colltellds that the pay~liellt of a fee, however denominated, by a 

co~lsumer to a niortgage brolter for providing coullseling services does not constitute a referral 

fee. 

32. Section 6139(a)(3) of the Mortgage Act (corresponding to Section 313(a)(5) of 

the MBBCEPA) allows the Department to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a license if a 

licensee has "[elngaged in disllonest, fi-audulent or illegal practices or conduct in a business or 

unfair or unethical practices or collduct in connection with the mortgage loan business. 7 Pa. 

C.S. 9 6139(a)(3) (cossesponding to 63 P.S. § 456.313(a)(5). 

33. The Moltgage Act provides the Department wit11 the a~lthority to assess a fine to a 

licensee for engaging in ". . . any action wl~icll would subject the licensee to suspensioiz, 

revocation or nollrenewal under section 6139 . . ." 7 Pa C.S. $ 6140(b). 
- -- -- ---- --. - -_- _ -  _ - _  

34. Compensatillgr-iioii-FHA-approved-brolter origination-ser-vices -ill-violationof _ -- - - - - -_ 

FHA Regulations would be considered an illegal practice or conduct in the lnortgage business. 

35. The Bureau has been informed that as of May 2008, Lend Aiizerica sl~ut down its 

wllolesale lending chanllel and, therefore, no longer conducts business with mortgage brokers. 

Record Keeping 

36. The Examination revealed that Lend Aiilerica had been maintaining its 

Pellnsylvailia records at the Corl~orate Office without al~proval from tlze Department. 



37. Section 6135(a)(2) of the Mortgage Act (corresponding to Sections 308(a)(2) of 

the MBBCEPA and 10(a)(2) of the SMLA) requires a licensee to maintain its Pennsylva~iia 

mortgage records at its principal place of business in Peniisylvania unless the licensee has 

ar~thorization from the Depa~"cment to niai~ltai~l those records elsewhere. 7 Pa. C.S. $ 6 135 (a)(2) 

(corresponding to 63 P.S. $ 456.308(a)(2) and 7 P.S. $ 661 0(a)(2)). 

33. Lend Anzerica did not have a~tl~orization from the Depaltment to ~liailitain its 

Pennsylvania records at any location other than its principal place of business in Perxisylvania. 

39. Prior to the co~lclusion of the Examination, Lend America returned all records 

involving Pennsylvania trar~sactions to the Principal Place and applied for, and was granted, 

approval to maintain records at the Corporate Office. 

Misleading Advertisements 

40. The Bureau believes that Lend America was engaging in advertising that could be 

considered lllisleadillg to consumers. 

41. Lend America disagrees witli the Bureau's contention. 

42. The Bureau believes that MLN 2008 is a Lend Anierica television advertiseme~it 

made to appear as a special report from a newscast with a clip of President Bush announcing an 

-economic-siiinulus-p15~z-t1~at-will-lelp-ot the-~i~o~tgage-i~~d~lst~y-. - _-- - -- _ -  - - - - - 

43. Section 46.2(a) of the Department's Proper Conduct of Lending and Broltering in 

the Mortgage Loan Business, 10 Pa. Code $ 46.1 et seq. (the "Proper Conduct Reg"), states "[a] 

licensee may not engage in false or misleading adve~tising." 10 Pa. Code 8 46.2(a). 

44. Section 46.3(a) of the Proper Collduct Reg provides that a violation of tlle Proper 

Conduct Reg is a violation of the Mortgage Act. 10 Pa. Code $ 46.3(a). 



Autllority of the Depastment 

45. Section 6138(a)(4) of the Mortgage Act (based upon Section 310(a) of tlle 

MBBCEPA and Section 16(1) of the SMLA) provides the Depastment wit11 a~ltl~ority to issue 

orders as may be necessary for the proper collduct of the nlortgage loan business and the 

enforcement of the Mortgage Act. 7 Pa. C.S. $ 6138(a)(4) (based upoil 63 P.S. $ 456.3 10(a) and 

7 P.S. $ 6616(1)). 

46. Section 6140(b) of the Mortgage Act (corresponding to Section 314(c) of the 

MBBCEPA and Section 22(b) of the SMLA) provides, in relevant part, that "[a] person licensed 

under this chapter or director, officer, owner, partner, employee 'or agent of a licensee who 

violates a provision of this chapter or who commits any action which would subject the licensee 

to suspension, revocation or nonrenewal under section 6139 may be fined by the depa~tn~eilt up 

to $10,000 for each offense." 7 Pa C.S. $ 6140(b) (corresponding to 63 P.S. $ 456.3 14(c) and 7 I 
P,S, $ 6622(b)). ' 

ALLEGATIONS 

47. By conducting mortgage loan business from unlicensed locations, Lend America 

was in violation of Sections 613 1 (a)(l)(ii) and 6132(b)(2) of the Mostgage Act. 

- ----- - 
48.-- -Laidd America-engaged-in-dislionest,-fmldule~lt or-illegal-practic_e_sby closi~ig and __  - _ -- 

- - 1 
fL1lldillg loalls where 11011-FHA approved inortgage brokers provided cou~~seling services to 

coilsunless and were compensated by the consulners for such services. 
I 

49. Lend America violated Section 6135(a)(2) of tile Mortgage Act (formally Section 

308(a)(2) of tlie MBBCEPA and Section 10(a)(2) of the SMLA) by not mai~~taining records at its 

principal place of busiiless in Penllsylvania when Lend Anlerica did not have authorization frolorn 

the Departnlellt to lnaintain the records elsewhere. 



50. Lend America violated Section 46.2(a) of the Proper Conduct Reg by engaging in 

l~lisleadiilg advertising. 

RELIEF 

51. &. Lend A~nerica agrees to pay a fine of $25,000 thousand dollars ($25,000) 

whicl~ shall be due and payable to the Department witl~in thilty (30) days of the Effective Date of 

this Order. The fine payillent shall be renlitted by a certified check or money order made 

payable to the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and sent to the attention of Co~npliance 

Division, Bureau of Co~llplia~~ce, Investigation and Licensing, 17 N. Second Stred, Suite 1300, 

Harrisburg, PA 17 10 1. I 
; 

52. Corrective Measures. Upon the Effective Date of this Order, Lend America 

agrees to conlply with the applicable Pennsylvania and federal law, including those related to: 

a: originating Pe~lnsylvania moltgage loans from locations licensed to 

conduct mortgage loan business subject to the Mortgage Act; 

b. originati~lg FHA loans; 

c. advertising; and 

,d. record lteeping. 

-- - --. F-8-R-T-H-ER--PRO-VISI-0-NS- - .- --.SSSSSSSSSS -. ._ 

53. Consent. Lend America hereby lu~owingly, willingly, voluntasily and i~~evocably  

collsents to the elltry of this Order pmsuant to the Bureau's order a~tthority ~ t i~der  the Mortgage 

~ c t  alld agrees that it ~~llderstailds all of the ternis and co~lditions contained therein. Lend 

America, by voluiltarily entering into this Order, waives any right to a hearing or appeal 

concer~~ing the terms, conditioils andlor penalties set forth in this Order. 



54. Publication. T11e Depastnlent will publish this Order pursuant to its authority in 

Section 302,A.(5) of the Depart~nent of Banking Code. 71 P.S. $ 733-302.A.(5). 

55. Entire Agreement. This Order contains the whole agreement between the parties. 

Tilere are no other ternls, obligations, covenants, representations, statements, conditions, or 

otherwise, of any lcind whatsoever concerning this Order. This Order may be anle~lded in 

writing by mutual agreenlent by the B u r e a ~ ~  and Lend America. 

5 6. bind ill^ Nature. The Depal-tment and Lend Anlerica intend to be and are legally 

bouild by the terr~ls of this Order. 

57. Counsel. This Order is entered into by the parties upon full opportunity for legal 

advice from legal counsel. 

58, Effectiveness. Lend America hereby stipulates and agrees that the Order shall 

become effective on the date that the Bureau executes the Order ("Effective Date"). 

59. Other Enforce~llent Action. 

a. The Depastment reserves all of its rigl~ts, duties, and authority to enforce 

all statutes, rules and regulations under its jurisdiction against Lend America in the future 

regarding all matters not resolved by this Order. 

- - - b;--- --Lend-Aiiierica--aelu~owledges- aild-agrees--tllattl~is -Oxde~.is-_only-bi~~ding .- - - 1 
I 

L I~OI I  the Department and not any other local, state or federal agency, departn~ent or office 

regarding matters within this Order. 

60. A~~thorization. The parties below are authorized to exec~~te  this Order and legally 

bind their respective parties. 

61. Co~ulterparts. This Order may be executed in separate countel-parts and by 

facsimile. 



62. Titles. The titles used to identify the paragraphs of this document are for the 

convenience of reference only and do not control the interpretation of this document. 

WHEREFORE, in consideratio~l of the foregoing, including the recital paragraphs, the 

Department and Lend Anierica intending to be legally bound, do hereby execute this Consent 

Agreenle~lt and Order. 

FOR THE COMMONWEALTH O F  PENNSYLVANIA 
DEPARTMENT OF BANKING, BUREAU OF COMPLIANCE, 
INVESTIGATION AND LICENSING 

-- - 
Kyan M. Walsh, Adni~nistrator 
Bureau of Compliance, 
Investigation and Licensing 
Department of Banking 

-- 
Date: l)~o,L. 20,a00s, 

FOR IDEAL MORTGAGE BANKER, LTD. D/B/A LEND AMERICA 

(0fflcer Signature) 

(Print Officer Name) 1 

(Title) 

Date: /o? 



EXHIBIT A 



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DE\'ELOPRIENT 
WASHINGTON, DC 20410-8000 

ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR HOUSING- 
FEDERAL HOUSING COMMISSIONER 

June 20,2008 

MORTGAGEE LETTER 2008-17 

TO: ALL APPROVED MORTGAGEES 

SUBJECT: Non FHA-approved Mortgage Brokers - Forv\lard Mortgages 

This Mortgagee Letter re~ni~lds lenders of existing FHA policy regarding t11e use of no11 
FHA-approved mortgage brokers when originati~lg FHA-insured folward mortgages. FHA loan 
origination services must be performed by a FHA-approved lender or FHA-approved mortgage 
broker (loan correspondent). A FHA-approved loan correspondent may be compensated for the 
actual loan origination services it perfomls either directly by the consumer or indirectly by the 
FHA-approved lender without being in violation of either the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act 
(RESPA) statute and regulations or FHA regulations. 

Wi l e  FHA regulations permit a borrower to engage a broker who is not FHA-approved to 
assist lzi~nlher in obtaining mortgage financing (24 CFR 203.27(e)), tlle loan origination services 
rnny not be performed by that broker and the FHA approved mortgagee shall not compensate tlle 
brolter for sucll services. FHA requires that these sesvices be perrfonned by either an FHA-approved 
lender or loan cosse~~ondent' . RESPA prolibits the payment of duplicative fees. The payment to 
the unapproved broker for duplicated services amounts to an uneanled fee in violation of section 
8(b) of RESPA. Further, this payment may also act as a disguised referral fee for steering the 
bo~rower to the FHA-approved lender or loan correspondent, wlzich is in viol'ation of section 8(a) of 
RESPA. . ' 

L _ _  _ -  

In RESPA Policy State~nent 1999-1 (FR-4450-N-Ol), the Deparhne~zt identified the sel-vices 
normally performed in the origination of a lorn. 1t has been FHA's experience that when non FHA- 
approved entities perfonn o~igination fixlctions and services on FHA-insured loans, tlle instances of 
serious comnpliance proble~ns increase as do the associated ~isks. As a result, there are pal-ticulx 
o~igination functioas and services that FHA requires to be p e ~ f o ~ ~ n e d  by an FHA-approved lender or 
loan cossespondent : 

taking info~lnatio~l ,from the bor-sower and filling out the loan application; 
collecting fulancial information (tax retunls, bank statements) and other related 
documents that are part of t l~e  application process; 
initiati~zglorde~i~~g Velifications of Enlployment and Deposit; 
initiatinglorderi~ig request for mortgage and other loan verifications; 

HUD Handbook 4060.1 REV-2, FHA Title I1 Mortgagee Approval Handbook 



illitiatinglorderi~lg appraisals; 
o initiating/ordering i~lspections or engineering reports; 
o providing disclosures (truth in lending, good faith estiniate and otl~ers) to the 

borrower(s); 
lnai~ltai~li~lg regular contact with the bolrower, real estate professional, and lender 
between loan application and closing to apprise t l ~e~n  of the status of the application and 
gather any additional information needed; 

o ordering legal docwnents; and 
o determining whether the property is is1 a flood zone or ordering such service. 

Other services that are considered counseling in nature (e.g., educating prospective borrowers in the 
home buying and financiag process, advising the borrower about different types of loan products 
available, and delnonstrating how closing costs and monthly payllent could vary under each 
product), lnay be performed by a no~l  FHA-approved broker so long as the services provided 
constitute lneaningful counseling, and not steering. Under RESPA Policy State~nent 1999-1, when 
'!counseling type" services are performed, HUD also loolts at wllether, (1) counseling gave the 
borrower the opportunity to consider products f io~n at least tlvee different lenders; (2) the entity 
pe~fo~ming tlle counseling would receive the sane conipensation regardless of which lender's 
product were ultimately selected; and (3) any paynent made for the "counseling type" services is 
reasonably related to the services performed. In these instances, the fee charged must be paid from 
the mortgagorys owrz m)ailczble assets, must be disclosed on the HUD-1 at closi~lg and a copy of the 
contract for these services must be included in the loan file submitted for insurance endorse~nent. 

Under no circu~nstances may a bon-owes be charged a fee that is rzot commnensurate wit11 the 
amount normally charged for similar services. If the payment bears no reasonable relationship to 
the market value of the se~vices provided, the excess over the ~narltet rate may be used as evidence 
of a conlpensated referral or unemled fee in violation of section 8(a) or (b) of RESPA and 24 CFR 
3500.14(g). 

RESPA provided fiu-ther guidance to industry regarding paynents by lenders to mo~tgage 
brokers in Policy Statement 1999-1. W i l e  the policy state~nent specifically speaks of lender 

.------.--------paylie~lts-to-~nolltgage b r o k e r s o  se-pay~~e~~ts~areiid~ectly~p.aid.b.y.~e~c.o~~s.~ne~a~~d..~l~e~p.~li.cy~.. .- - 

statement would apply equally to 'paynents made directly by the coasulner. 

If you have any questions regarding this Mortgagee Letter, please contact the FHA Resource 
Center at 1-800-CALLFHA (1-800-225-5342). 

Sincerely, 

Brian D. Montgomery 
Assistant Secretary for Housing- 

Federal Housing Colntnissioner 


